
1 | P a g e  
 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
PRIVATE DETECTIVE AND PROTECTIVE AGENT SERVICES BOARD 

1430 Maryland Avenue East, St. Paul, Minnesota 
JUNE 30TH, 2015 

 
Meeting Minutes 

 
Members Present:   Drew Evans, Jim Hessel, Steve Wohlman, Pat Moen 

Attorney General Representative- Pete Magnuson 
Members Not Present:  Richard Hodsdon  
Agency Staff:   Greg Cook, Executive Director 
 
Evans called the June 2015 meeting of Private Detectives and Protective Agents board to order at 10:07 AM. 
 

1. REVIEW OF MAY 2015 MEETING MINUTES & AGING REPORTS 
Evans asked if members had a chance to review the May 2015 Meeting Minutes and aging reports.  Wohlman stated 
that he did and moved the minutes of the previous meeting. Hessel seconded.  All board members were in favor and 
Evans stated that the May Meeting Minutes had been approved. 
 

2. CURRENT CONTINGENCIES   
PAC #1087: ADC, Ltd. Cook stated they had the date mixed up with their PDC license renewal date. They turned in 
their packet, but missing information on the Affidavit of Training (AOT). They are contingent until the July meeting. 
 
Evans addressed Cook to see if he needed to continue with their packet.  Cook announced that they sent in their 
packet, but he needed more time to review it.  Evans questioned if the contingency was still okay.  Cook affirmed and 
Drew stated that it will be left as is. 
 

3. RENEWAL CONSENT AGENDA 
Cook requested a motion of approval for the following reissuances as they had provided all materials and had no 
issues: 
 

LICENSE HOLDERS 
PDI #776: Buchanan Investigative Service 
PAC #181: The Phoenix Security Co.   
PAC 240: QualPro Services Inc.  
PDC 828: Unified Investigations & Sciences, Inc. 
PDC 988: Claims Bureau USA, Inc.  
PDC #907 A Infidelity Investigations Inc. 
PAC #321: Andy Frain Services 
PAC #331: JBM Patrol & Protection Corp. 
PDC #828: Unified Investigations & Sciences, Inc. 
PDI # 782: Ray Diprima 
PDI #1089: Kathleen S. Michael North Woods Fraud Investigations, Inc. 
PDC #1044 Insight Service Group, Inc. 
PDI #755 William Raduenz 
PDC #1088 Defense Investigations Group 
 
Evans asked the board if they had any questions on the licenses.  Hessel motioned to renew the licenses.  Wohlman 
seconded.  The board voted in favor.  Evans stated that the motion carries. 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

4. RENEWALS WITH ISSUES:  
PDC #907 Specialized Private Investigations, LLC – Cook stated he was awaiting documentation and was requesting a 
contingency. 
 
Evans asked the Board if there was a motion to grant the license a contingency while they wait for the 
documentation.  Moen motioned.  Wohlman seconded.  The board voted in favor of the motion.  Evans stated that 
PDC #907 had been granted a contingency. 
 

5. TABLED  
Alexander MacGillis [see below] 
 

6. LAPSED LICENSES: 
PDC #1078 Gibbs and Associates – 6/1/2015 
PAC #1080 Allied National Services – 7/1/2015 
 
Cook stated that PDC #1078 was now in expired status as of today and that PAC #1080 would be lapsed until the July 
meeting.   
 

7.  SURRENDERED LICENSES: 
Lexis Nexis PDC #1161  
AER Investigations PDC #871  
Lind Investigations Ltd PDC #1000  
Patrick McPherson PDI #1045  
 
Evans questioned if PDC #1161 provided a reason as to why they don’t think they need a license.  Cook responded 
that this branch was the one who bought four different licenses and this particular one is not doing any investigative 
services.  Evans asked if they had any other licenses.  Cook stated that they have three other licenses. 
 

8. TRAINING COURSE & INSTRUCTOR APPROVALS:  
 

TYPE PROVIDER INSTRUCTORS COURSE NAME HRS 

PPA 
Fond du Lac Tribal & 
Community College 

Tom Bertch, III First Aid/CPR/AED 6 

PPA/PPD Plane Cents Joseph C. Penaz Firearms Training for Protective 
Agents, and/or Private Detectives 

7 

IA Plane Cents Joseph C. Penaz Initial Armed 7 

CA Plane Cents Joseph C. Penaz Continuing Armed Education 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROVIDER INSTRUCTORS 

Fond du Lac Tribal & Community College Tom Bertch, III 

Plane Cents Joseph C. Penaz 



3 | P a g e  
 

Evans asked if the board members had any questions about the training classes or instructors.  No questions were 
asked.  Evans asked if there was a motion to move the courses and the instructors.  Hessel made a motion to move 
the courses and the instructors.  Wohlman seconded the motion.  The Board voted in favor of the motion.  Evans 
stated that the motion would carry. 
 

9. OFFICER CHANGES – Consent Agenda:  
 
License Holder Business Name: The Robinson Group 
License Type/Number: PDC 981 
Change from: Guy Redman 
Change to: Nicholas Gessell 
Type of Officer Change (MM, QR, CFO, CEO): MM 
Physical Address: 3310 Big Beaver Road, #204, Troy, MI 48084 
Local Address: TBD 

 
 
License Holder Business Name: ADP Screening & Selection Services, Inc. 
License Type/Number: PDC 1029 
Change from: Sean Barry 
Change to: Cara E. Muth 
Type of Officer Change (MM, QR, CFO, CEO): QR/MM 
Physical Address: 301 Remington St., Ft. Collins, CO 80524 
Local Address: 10513 Kell Ave., Bloomington, MN 55437 

 
 
License Holder Business Name: G4S Compliance & Investigations 
License Type/Number: PDC 1020 
Change from: Treg Peyton 
Change to: Troy Miller 
Type of Officer Change (MM, QR, CFO, CEO): QR 
Physical Address: 910 Paverstone Drive, Raleigh NC 27615 
Local Address: 380 Jackson St #700, St. Paul, MN 55101 

 
License Holder Business Name: Sentry Investigations, Inc. 
License Type/Number: PDC 1139 
Change from: Michael Lyman 
Change to: Steven C. Gaber 
Type of Officer Change (MM, QR, CFO, CEO): QR/MM 
Physical Address: 4342 15th Ave. S Ste 206 Fargo, ND 58103 
Local Address: 3121 32nd Ave S., Moorhead, MN 56560 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 | P a g e  
 

License Holder Business Name: Fund Holder Reports, LLC 
License Type/Number: PDC 1083 
Change from: Bruce Sederstrom 
Change to: Mark Angelo 
Type of Officer Change (MM, QR, CFO, CEO): QR/MM 
Physical Address: 2201 N Lakewood BL, Suite D175, Long Beach, CA 90815 
Local Address: 2527 13th Ave NW, Andover, MN 55304 

 
Wohlman didn’t see any issues with the officer changes.  Evans agreed and asked if there were any other questions 
or comments from the Board.  No questions.  Wohlman moved the consent agenda on the officer changes.  Hessel 
seconded.   The Board voted in favor of the motion.  Evans stated the motion will carry.  
 

10. NEW LICENSE APPLICANTS – Tabled: 
 

Applicant Business Name: Alexander George MacGillis 
Type of License Applying For: Individual Private Detective 

Physical/Local Address: 2925 30th Ave S, Mpls, MN 55406 
 
Evans asked Mr. MacGillis to come forward.  Cook stated that at the previous meeting he had lacked proof of 
financial responsibility and that he has since provided insurance with general liability which meets the requirements. 
Evans welcomed Mr. MacGillis back and opened up the conversation to the board members for any questions or 
comments they had.  Wohlman stated that he didn’t have any questions, he has reviewed the documentation and 
that it’s a legitimate insurance certificate.  Cook stated he received a complete copy of the policy as well.  Cook 
questioned MacGillis as to if he had ever heard back from his accountant.  MacGillis stated he did not.  Wohlman 
moved for the license to be granted to Alexander MacGillis for an individual private detective.  Hessel seconded.  The 
Board voted in favor of the motion.   
 

11. NEW LICENSE APPLICANTS – Present: 
 

Applicant Business Name: Monterrey Security Consultants 

Type of License Applying For: Corporate Protective Agent 

Physical/Local Address: 2232 Blue Island Ave., Chicago IL 60608 
 
Juan Gaytan, Owner of Monterrery Security, came forward.  Cook introduced himself and asked if he understood the 
Tennessen Warning.  Gaytan affirmed.  
 
Evans asked Gaytan if he would like to provide the Board with any qualifications and background.  Gaytan stated he 
was a Chicago Police Officer for 12 years and that he was still a detective with the City of Bridgeview, IL.  He stated 
that on a part-time basis he helped clear cases with that agency.  He stated he started his security business with his 
family in Chicago and currently provides security services for the city.  Some of his clients are Wrigley Field/Chicago 
Cubs, Toyota Park, Bridgeview/Soccer Venue, and Soldier Field.  He stated that the company’s expertise was in crowd 
management, providing security and guest services.  Gaytan stated that they provide security for the University Of 
Notre Dame in Indiana and that they were licensed in the state of Indiana for the last three years.  Gaytan stated that 
his reason for applying is because a company called SMG was awarded the project in Minnesota for the new Vikings 
facility and they asked him if he would be interested in providing services there.   
 



5 | P a g e  
 

Gaytan stated that his initial intention was to provide services to the new facility, but if granted, they see that there 
may be more opportunity in the state.  He stated he understood the rules and guidelines.  Gaytan asked for any 
questions from the Board. 
 
Evans asked about any disciplinary issues with his company in the state of Illinois.  Gaytan addressed that in 1999 he 
was still a Chicago Police Officer when he started the company.  Gaytan stated that at that time he didn’t understand 
the laws pertained to provide security services.  He said that in the beginning they didn’t have the proper license or 
proper insurance and since then, they have had no infractions and have been certified by Illinois.  Gaytan said they 
had paid a fine, understood what that process was, and haven’t made that mistake again.   
 
Evans asked what other states Gaytan was licensed in.  Gaytan stated Indiana.  Evans asked if he’s had any 
disciplinary issues in Indiana.  Gaytan stated there were none and that they had been licensed there for three years.  
Gaytan stated that their only contract there is through the University Of Notre Dame.   
 
Evans inquired how many employees Gaytan had.  Gaytan stated he had about 500 full-time employees and several 
thousand seasonal part-time employees depending on special events.  Evans asked how many employees he 
anticipated in Minnesota.  Gaytan anticipated the same amount given that they intended to use the stadium 24 
hours a day all year not just for football.  He believed there would be several hundred security guards involved there 
with the 24 hour operation.   
 
Drew questioned if he anticipated having armed security.  Gaytan stated that it was his experience that there were 
certain positions that will be armed.   
 
Wohlman asked if he has done any soliciting at all in the State of Minnesota.  Gaytan answered in the negative.  He 
said they had gone into the community to meet with community organizations about career opportunities with law 
enforcement and to talk about them potentially being the qualified representative as he would be the Minnesota 
Manager handling the day-to-day activities until they could find a replacement.  He stated he had no employees here 
at this time.   
 
Hessel asked if he was still with the NFL.  Gaytan affirmed.  His second goal, should he be granted, would be to seek 
certification services from the Board so he could do his pre-assignment training.   
 
Wohlman asked Gaytan if he was still a licensed police officer in Illinois.  Gaytan affirmed he was, but on a part-time 
basis.  He had weekly discussions with them and went in monthly to help them out.  He stated he was mainly 
consulting, but still licensed there. 
 
Wohlman asked how many years Gaytan served on the Chicago police force.  Gaytan responded that he had been for 
12 years, but really only 10 years because he had a leave of absence there when he started the company.   
 
Wohlman asked what Gaytan’s reason was for resigning from the police force.  Gaytan stated it was due to the work 
with his company, and wanted to dedicate his time to this kind of work. 
 
Wohlman asked Gaytan if he had any problems when he was working for the police force in Chicago.  Gaytan 
responded that he had instances in Chicago where things had been in the question, but he had been exonerated for 
every single issue he had there in the Chicago Police Department.  He stated he resigned on his own will.  He stated in 
1995, he was placed on suspension where six gang members made allegations against him, he went through the 
entire process, and was exonerated on all levels.  The City of Chicago reimbursed him for any loss of pay he did not 
receive during that time.  He stated there probably could have been a couple more instances where a citizen 
complained, but he didn’t have those written down.   
 



6 | P a g e  
 

Cook asked what district Gaytan worked out of in Chicago.  Gaytan responded that he worked out of the 10th and 11th 
district, and was in a unit called Gang Crimes West. 
 
Moen was concerned on Gaytan’s responsiveness to Board inquiries.  She stated that they had an initial application 
from him in March in which he did not include any employment with the Chicago Police Department.  That was 
information that was not disclosed for a two month period.  Gaytan responded that they hired a company called CT 
Services to help them fill out the application, and an employee of theirs was responsible for the application process 
during that time.  He had since then hired an assistant that gathered all the materials back from her.  When the 
information was made to his attention, he was forthcoming with the information.   
 
Moen inquired that in the initial application he did not disclose his employment with the Chicago Police Department.  
Gaytan said that it appeared as so.   
 
Wohlman commented that Gaytan did sign the application.  Gaytan affirmed.  Wohlman asked if he read it over 
before he signed it.  Gaytan responded that he did not do it as well as he should have.   
 
Cook stated that he had since provided that documentation to the Board.  Gaytan stated that he was not using CT 
Services, but now dealing directly with the Board.   
 
Moen brought up Gaytan’s disciplinary history with the Chicago Police Department and that he was exonerated.  
Moen asked what the exoneration process was.  Gaytan responded saying if there were any kinds of allegations you 
were put on administrative leave until that process takes place, then there’s a board that reviews the process.  They 
interviewed people, went through all of the evidence, which was quite lengthy, it’s about a 16 month process.  The 
City of Chicago exonerated him and paid for loss of time.   
 
Moen asked if that was an internal process or corporate.  Gaytan responded saying it was both. They had court 
proceedings and internal procedures, but nothing was a public matter because it was expunged as all of the facts 
were disproven. 
 
Evans asked if there were any other questions. 
 
Wohlman asked to consult with the Attorney General and did so.   
 
Wohlman introduced the information found in the Chicago Tribune on a city settlement regarding a lawsuit having to 
do with his time as a police officer and individuals pulled from the car and kicked.  The city settled the lawsuit for 
$95,000 dollars.  Wohlman said the documentation reported that Gaytan allowed fake blood to be applied to his face 
and then asked Gaytan if this was correct. 
 
Gaytan said that he knew what situation he was talking about, but stated it was not a correct statement and the 
media will write whatever they want. 
 
Wohlman said that he concurred with him on that statement, but that they haven’t really received much from the 
police department in terms of information. 
 
Gaytan insisted that he submitted an affidavit from one of his past direct commanders.   
 
Cook stated that he had received this from Bridgeview Police Department and actually spoke to him on the phone.  
Cook stated that he also asked if he could submit, from his former commander with the Chicago PD, an affidavit.  
Cook left the decision up to the Board whether or not to retrieve this information from the Chicago PD. 
 



7 | P a g e  
 

Hessel asked Gaytan if he employed Chicago Police off duty.  Gaytan affirmed that he had several hundred Chicago 
Police Officers working for him.  Hessel inquired about how long they had been working at this capacity.  Gaytan 
stated at least 12 or 13 years.  Hessel asked if there were ever problems.  Gaytan said there were not.   
 
Hessel asked if they wore their uniforms off-duty.  Gaytan replied that they did in certain positions.  He stated that 
the majority of them would have to work in their Monterrey uniform.  
 
Evans asked if there was anything else.  Wohlman said he did not have any more questions.  Evans asked if there was 
a motion on this particular applicant.  Evans made a motion to grant a corporate protective agent license to 
Monterrey Security Consultants with Juan Gaytan as the Minnesota Representative.  Evans asked if there was a 
second.   
 
Hessel seconded.  Evans questioned if anyone opposed.  Wohlman and Moen opposed.   
 
Evans stated they had a tie and would have to table this until the next meeting.  Evans motioned to table this license 
until they got a contingent of voting members that could pass or deny the application. 
 
Gaytan questioned if he will need to be present at the next meeting. 
 
The Board agreed that he should be present.   
 

12. REQUEST TO SPEAK TO THE BOARD: None at this time. 
 

13. OTHER ISSUES AND DISCUSSION: None at this time. 
 
At this time the Board adjourned the meeting so that pursuant to Minnesota Statute 13d.01 subd. 2 they could 
discuss disciplinary matters. 
 
The meeting temporarily adjourned at 10:49 AM. 
 
After the closed door session the Board opened the meeting to the public again and then adjourned the Board 
meeting. 
 
Meeting reconvened at 11:05 AM. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 11:05 AM. 

 
Next meeting is scheduled for July 28th, 2015 at 10:00am. 


	PRIVATE DETECTIVE AND PROTECTIVE AGENT SERVICES BOARD
	2. CURRENT CONTINGENCIES
	3. RENEWAL CONSENT AGENDA
	8. TRAINING COURSE & INSTRUCTOR APPROVALS:
	10. NEW LICENSE APPLICANTS – Tabled:
	11. NEW LICENSE APPLICANTS – Present:



